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The Metropolitan Oakland International Airport (“Oakland Airport”) seeks to increase 

passengers and profits by rushing to unlawfully incorporate San Francisco International Airport’s 

(“SFO”) trademarked name into its own.  Oakland Airport’s actions ignore SFO’s longstanding 

protected mark, brand, and identity, violate federal and state intellectual property law, and disregard 

the legal infringement and consumer confusion its actions create.  Oakland Airport’s hasty and 

unnecessary efforts and refusal to engage in discussions of alternative names have left the City and 

County of San Francisco (the “City”) no choice but to bring this complaint against Defendant City of 

Oakland, acting by and through its Board of Port Commissioners (“Defendant”), for (i) federal 

trademark infringement and false designation of origin and unfair competition violating the Lanham 

Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1051, et seq., and (ii) common law trademark infringement.   

The City alleges, with knowledge concerning its own acts and on information and belief as to 

all other matters (unless otherwise specifically stated), as follows. 

INTRODUCTION 

1. Through the Port of Oakland, Defendant owns and operates an airport that for years 

has used the name the “Metropolitan Oakland International Airport.”  On March 29, 2024, Defendant 

issued a press release abruptly announcing its proposal to change the name to “San Francisco Bay 

Oakland International Airport” (the “Infringing Mark”) and published an agenda for the Oakland 

Board of Port Commissioners to vote on the proposal at its regular meeting barely two weeks later on 

April 11, 2024.  Defendant notified the City of the intended name change by contacting the Airport 

Director of SFO (“Airport Director”) only 30 minutes before Defendant issued the press release.  The 

Airport Director immediately expressed significant concern and offered to discuss the matter further, 

but Defendant did not respond.  

2. Defendant has publicly stated that it is merely making a geographic reference and that 

its main purpose for the name change is to increase passenger traffic at its airport, create jobs, and 

boost economic activity in Oakland.  The City supports these goals and wants Defendant and its 

airport to thrive for the benefit of the region.  But the City opposes Defendant’s proposed name 

change that infringes on the City’s long-standing and incontestable registered trademark name for 
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SFO.  In particular, Defendant’s proposal to include “San Francisco” at the front of its new name, 

closely followed by the words “International Airport” is problematic, as it will almost certainly cause 

confusion among consumers and the public generally.  The potential for confusion will be particularly 

acute for international travelers who may not speak or read English and comprise an essential part of 

SFO’s consumer base.   

3. Travelers will very likely be confused and book tickets to the unintended airport, 

thinking that the “San Francisco Bay Oakland International Airport” is SFO and arrive in the wrong 

place, a mistake leading to missed flights and connections, among other problems.  Other travelers 

may think there is a business relationship between SFO and Defendant’s airport, when there is not.  

Use of the Infringing Mark, and the potential for confusion and mistakes, has already started with at 

least one airline.  

4. Defendant is hurrying to approve and use the Infringing Mark without pausing to 

consider reasonable alternative names that could achieve its stated goals while avoiding the confusion 

it will surely cause.  The City, seeking to avoid the costs of litigation for both sides, has and continues 

to urge Defendant to seriously consider such alternatives.  Indeed, the City has offered on multiple 

occasions to engage in a constructive dialogue to seek such alternatives, ranging from 

communications from the Airport Director, San Francisco City Attorney David Chiu, and 

San Francisco Mayor London Breed, to other regional stakeholders, all to no avail. 

5. Instead of engaging with the City or considering reasonable alternatives, Defendant 

has publicly doubled down on its defense of the proposed name, moving forward with approving the 

name change.  At the Board of Port Commissioners meeting on April 11, 2024, the Commission 

unanimously approved the ordinance to rename the airport on first read.  Yet, Defendant’s misplaced 

resolve does not save its unlawful use.    

6. For these reasons and as explained further below, the City seeks injunctive relief to 

prevent Defendant’s intended use of the Infringing Mark, which violates the City’s recognized rights 

in its federally registered service mark SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT.  And 

because at least one airline has already started using the Infringing Mark, the City also requests an 

order prohibiting any continued use of the Infringing Mark and requiring the payment of 
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compensatory damages to the City.  In connection with the requested relief, the City further seeks to 

recover attorneys’ fees and costs. 

PARTIES 

7. The City is a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the 

State of California, with its principal place of business at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton Goodlett Place, 

San Francisco, California 94102-4682.  The City owns SFO.  Under its Charter, the City, acting 

through its Airport Commission, has at all relevant times had complete authority to use, operate, 

maintain, manage, regulate, improve, and control SFO.  The City conducts business in California and 

within this District, providing airport services through SFO to national and international consumers. 

8. Defendant City of Oakland is a municipal corporation duly organized and existing 

under the laws of the State of California, with its principal place of business at 530 Water Street, 

Oakland, California 94607.  Under its Charter, Defendant, acting through its Board of Port 

Commissioners, owns and operates Oakland Airport.  Defendant conducts business in California and 

within this District, providing airport services through Oakland Airport to national and international 

consumers.      

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

9. Under 15 U.S.C. § 1121(a) and 28 U.S.C. § 1338(a), this court has subject matter 

jurisdiction over the City’s claims for relief for violating the Lanham Act.  Under 28 

U.S.C. § 1338(b), this court has supplemental jurisdiction over the City’s state law claims because 

they are joined with substantial and related claims under the Lanham Act.  This court also has 

supplemental jurisdiction over the City’s state law claims under 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a) because all of the 

City’s claims arise out of a common nucleus of operative facts. 

10. This court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant because Defendant resides and 

maintains its offices in this State. 

11. Venue in this court exists under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(1) and (2), as Defendant resides 

within this District and a substantial part of the events giving rise to the City’s claims occurred within 

this District. 
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12. This is an intellectual property action to be assigned on a district-wide basis under Civil 

Local Rule 3-2.  This case may also be assigned to the San Francisco Division, as a substantial part of 

the events giving rise to the alleged claims that occurred in the City and County of San Francisco. 

FACTS COMMON TO ALL CLAIMS FOR RELIEF  

SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT® Brand 

13. The City owns, and has obtained, United States federal registration No. 4,189,396 for, 

the SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark in class 39 for airport services (the “‘396 

registration.”)  A copy of the Certificate of Registration is attached as Exhibit A.  The Certificate of 

Registration for the SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark expressly acknowledges 

the distinctiveness of the SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark as having acquired 

distinctiveness under Section 2(f) of the Lanham Act. 

14. SFO has operated since 1927 and has used the name “San Francisco Airport” or 

“San Francisco International Airport” for most of its history, making it immediately recognizable to 

both domestic and international customers.  SFO has invested significant resources to become the 

successful airport it is today.  The creation of the International Terminal over 20 years ago, along with 

major upgrades to almost all SFO terminals since then, helped attract the level of international and 

domestic long-haul flights that make SFO one of the busiest airports in the United States, having 

served over 50 million passengers in 2023.  

15. Under 15 U.S.C. § 1065 the City’s ‘396 registration for the SAN FRANCISCO 

INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark is incontestable.  That incontestability constitutes conclusive 

evidence of the ‘396 registration’s validity, as well as the City’s entitlement to the exclusive use of the 

SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark in commerce throughout the United States 

for the services listed in the ‘396 registration. 

16. The City has been and is now engaged in the business of airport services under the 

SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark.  In fact, the City has used the 

SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark in commerce since 1954.  The City’s 

SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark is well-known and recognized as identifying 

airport services that originate from SFO.  The City continuously, extensively, and prominently 



  

Complaint for Trademark Infringement et al. 
Case No.    

6

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

promotes itself and advertises its services using the SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL 

AIRPORT Mark through its website, commercial advertisement, social media, public outreach events, 

popular third-party websites selling passenger airline tickets, and through other means.  

17. Through the City’s ongoing activities, the SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL 

AIRPORT Mark has become extensively well-known by passengers and the air-travel industry, both 

nationally and internationally, making it one of the country’s most successful airports and winning 

multiple awards.  The following are just a few examples of awards over the past few years.  In 2022, 

the Wall Street Journal named SFO the best large U.S. airport, and Airports Council International 

awarded SFO the award for best customer experience as selected by passengers.  In 2023, SFO was 

named a 2023 Routes Americas award winner for its success developing new airlines and destinations, 

and was also named the Best Airport for Food in America by the readers of Food & Wine magazine.  

A complete list of SFO’s awards can be found at https://www.flysfo.com/about-sfo/awards.    

Defendant’s Unauthorized Attempts to Use the  
SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark 

18. As explained above, on March 29, 2024, the Port of Oakland issued a press release 

announcing that it would be renaming Oakland Airport to “San Francisco Bay Oakland International 

Airport.” 

19. Just 30 minutes before issuing its press release announcing the change to the 

Infringing Mark, Defendant reached out to the Airport Director.  The Airport Director immediately 

expressed significant concern, requested information on the basis for the proposed renaming, and 

offered to discuss the matter further.  But Defendant did not respond.   

20. Since that announcement, the Airport Director, other City officials and regional 

stakeholders have formally expressed opposition and serious concerns about the proposed name 

change.  City and regional stakeholders have repeatedly offered to engage in a constructive dialogue 

to seek concrete alternatives to Defendant’s intended use of the Infringing Mark.  Some of the  

collective efforts are detailed below: 

 On April 1, 2024 the Airport Director sent a letter to Defendant, opposing the 
proposal and requesting that Defendant not proceed.  (A copy of the letter is 
attached as Exhibit B.)  
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 On April 2, 2024, the San Francisco Board of Supervisors adopted a resolution 

opposing the proposal.  (A copy of the letter is attached as Exhibit C.) 
 

 On April 8, 2024, San Francisco Mayor London Breed sent a letter to Defendant 
opposing the proposal.  (A copy of the letter is attached as Exhibit D.) 

 
 On April 8, 2024, the San Francisco City Attorney sent a letter calling for 

Defendant to cancel its plan to approve the name change, inviting Defendant to 
meet with SFO to consider alternatives, and threatening legal action if Defendant 
moved forward with the proposal given the violations to the City’s intellectual 
property rights that would occur if Defendant continued to proceed.  (A copy of the 
letter is attached as Exhibit E.)  
 

 On April 8, 2024, the Airport Director reached out again to the Port of Oakland 
Executive Director to discuss the proposed airport name change and engage in a 
collaborative effort to find a reasonable alternative. 
 

 On April 9, 2024, the San Mateo County Board of Supervisors adopted a 
resolution opposing the proposal.  (SFO is located in San Mateo County.) 
 

 On April 10, 2024, the Executive Director of the Bay Area Council, a non-profit 
organization of leading employers in the Bay Area dedicated to public policy and 
advocacy efforts to improve the economic health of the region, emailed both the 
Airport Director and the Executive Director of the Port to request that Defendant 
continue the matter in the spirit of cooperation to identify alternatives that do not 
amplify confusion for travelers. 

21. While Defendant has not responded to any of the City’s requests for discussion, 

Defendant has publicly claimed, among other things, that the Infringing Mark merely denotes Oakland 

Airport’s geographic location and is not an attempt to divert or confuse consumers.  But Defendant’s 

claim is not tenable because it has proposed to use the term “San Francisco” at the beginning of 

Oakland Airport’s proposed new name, as part of a brand or trademark in the new airport name, and 

not merely as a geographic indicator.  

22. Despite these vigorous efforts by the City and others, Defendant continues to rush to 

use the Infringing Mark, appearing to ignore the City’s and others’ concerns and refusing to engage 

with the City to discuss potential collaborative measures and alternative names that would not infringe 

on the City’s SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark.  Reasonable alternatives exist 

that could still advance Defendant’s goals of increasing passenger traffic at its airport, creating jobs, 

and boosting economic activity. 
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23. On April 11, 2024, at the Oakland Board of Port Commissioners’ meeting, Defendant 

heard public comment both opposing and supporting the proposal, including requests for a 

continuance due to the rushed process and the lack of sufficient public outreach on the proposal.  

Despite the repeated requests to collaborate and continue the item to consider alternatives, Defendant 

approved the first reading of the ordinance to rename the airport the “San Francisco Bay Area Oakland 

International Airport,” and scheduled the vote to approve the second reading of the ordinance at its 

regular meeting scheduled for May 9, 2024, purportedly to allow for stakeholder engagement, even 

though it has refused to engage with the City for the three weeks since it announced its renaming plan.  

24. Because of Defendant’s failure to respond to the City’s concerns, and Defendant’s 

continued expressed intention to use the Infringing Mark, the City was compelled to bring this suit.  

Defendant’s Continuing Infringement and Unlawful Conduct 
Confuses Consumers and the General Public, 

and Harms the City  

25. In light of the City’s senior and superior rights in the SAN FRANCISCO 

INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark, the City believes that consumers will very likely be confused 

about where Defendant’s airport is located and believe that Defendant and its services are endorsed, 

approved, or sponsored by, or affiliated, connected, or associated with, the City, which they are not.   

26. Specifically, Defendant’s plan to place “San Francisco” at the front of its new name 

will only cause confusion among consumers and the public generally.  Travelers will very likely be 

confused and book tickets to the unintended airport, thinking that the “San Francisco Bay Oakland 

International Airport” is SFO and arrive in the wrong place, which would lead to missed flights and 

connections.  Also, travelers may book travel to one airport, and mistakenly make reservations for 

rental cars at the other.  Because the airports are about 30 miles apart, separated by the San Francisco 

Bay, arriving at the unintended airport would likely result in delays and entirely missed flights, as well 

as additional costs to get from one airport to the other should a traveler make such a mistake.  These 

mistakes will cause frustration and financial loss for those travelers to the serious detriment of both 

airports, the region, and the consuming public. 
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27. Also, the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit (“BART”) public transportation 

system, which connects the two airports, uses “San Francisco” as a direction in which trains travel.  

Consumers are very likely to be confused about which train to take when the San Francisco 

International Airport and the proposed “San Francisco Bay Oakland International Airport” are on 

different ends of a rail line.   

28. On information and belief, this consumer confusion may have already occurred and will 

very likely continue to occur unless Defendant ends its proposal to use the Infringing Mark or this 

court issues an order enjoining that use. 

29. At least one airline has already adopted and used the Infringing Mark.  Azores Airlines 

is using the Infringing Mark in connection with flight reservations as shown below.   

 

 

31. When a website user enters “San Francisco” into the “From” or “To” fields for flight 

information, the Azores Airlines drop down menu displays “San Francisco” and right below it, the 

Infringing Mark.  In the eyes of the consuming public, this type of adjacent presentation of the two 

airports will very likely cause confusion about the location of Defendant’s airport, resulting in many 

travelers ending up at the unintended airport, and confused as to whether Defendant’s airport is 
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affiliated with, endorsed, or sponsored by SFO.  This type of confusing commercial use is exactly 

what the City is attempting to prevent by this action.  

32. Defendant does not have authorization, license, or permission from the City to conduct 

any business including marketing and selling its airport services under the Infringing Mark.  Those 

airport services are identical or highly related to the airport services associated with SFO.   

33. Defendant’s use of the Infringing Mark to attract unwitting travelers to Defendant’s 

airport will allow Defendant to unfairly reap the benefits of the City’s reputation and goodwill 

associated with the SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark, while very likely 

causing widespread consumer confusion, financial detriment to the City, and harm to consumers.  

34. Defendant’s intended use of the confusingly similar Infringing Mark in commerce 

violates the City’s valuable intellectual property rights in the SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL 

AIRPORT Mark and the ‘396 registration.  Defendant’s knowing, intentional, and willful use of this 

mark damages the City and the City’s property. 

35. Defendant intends to use the Infringing Mark to unfairly usurp and capitalize on the 

value and goodwill of the SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark and the ‘396 

registration.  Defendant has been and is aware of the City’s strong trademark rights and reputation in 

the marketplace, but nevertheless, intends to use the Infringing Mark to profit from the goodwill 

associated with the SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark and the ‘396 

registration.    

36. Defendant’s conduct will intentionally and knowingly capitalize off of confusion 

between the SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark and the Infringing Mark by 

providing  substantially similar airport services to the same consumers, as described above. 

37. To protect its intellectual property rights in the face of Defendant’s rushed decision to 

use the Infringing Mark, the City had to retain outside counsel and incur substantial fees and costs 

(and it continues to incur those fees and costs) to prosecute this suit and pursue its claims. 

38. The City’s interest in protecting its intellectual property rights and its products and 

services from consumer confusion outweighs any potential harm to Defendant.  As mentioned above, 

there are reasonable alternatives available to Defendant to promote its interests which avoid the 
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confusion that the current proposal is very likely to cause with its resultant harm to consumers, the 

public, and the City.  Accordingly, the public would be well served by this court granting the City’s 

requested preliminary and permanent injunctive relief to prevent Defendant from proceeding with its 

proposed name change to the Infringing Mark. 

CLAIMS FOR RELIEF 

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 

Federal Trademark Infringement – 15 U.S.C. § 1114 

39. The City incorporates by reference the factual allegations set forth above. 

40. The City owns the ‘396 registration.  The SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL 

AIRPORT Mark reflected in the ‘396 registration is strong and distinctive and designates the City as 

the source of all services advertised, marketed, sold, or used in connection with the SAN 

FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark. 

41. The City is the senior user of the SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

Mark, as it began use of that mark in interstate commerce before Defendant’s intended adoption and 

use of the confusingly similar Infringing Mark. 

42. Defendant does not have authorization, license, or permission from the City to conduct 

any business including marketing and selling its services under the Infringing Mark that are identical 

or highly related to the airport services associated with SFO.  Defendant’s use of the Infringing Mark 

is very likely to cause consumer confusion as to the location of Defendant’s airport and/or any 

sponsorship, endorsement or affiliation with SFO, which there is not.  

43. Defendant is aware of the SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark 

and the ‘396 registration as Defendant is on constructive notice based on the City’s federal 

registration, and is on actual notice from the City’s numerous recent direct communications with 

Defendant about this matter before Defendant voted to approve on first read the ordinance allowing 

Defendant’s airport name change to include the term “San Francisco” to proceed.  (See Exhibits B-E.)  

Yet, Defendant has continued to seek to adopt and use its Infringing Mark.  Thus, Defendant’s 

intended unauthorized use of the confusingly similar Infringing Mark is knowing, intentional, and 

willful, constituting trademark infringement. 
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44. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant’s wrongful conduct, the City has been 

and will continue to be harmed. 

45. Unless this court issues preliminary and permanent injunction orders preventing 

Defendant’s use of the confusingly similar Infringing Mark, such use is very likely to continue to 

cause confusion, mistake, or deception as to source, origin, affiliation, or sponsorship, and will 

irreparably harm the City. 

46. Defendant’s activities will cause irreparable harm to the City, for which it has no 

adequate remedy at law, because: (i) the SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark and 

the ‘396 registration comprise unique and valuable property rights that have no readily determinable 

market value; (ii) Defendant’s infringement interferes with the City’s goodwill and consumer 

relationships and substantially harms and will continue to substantially harm the City’s reputation as a 

source of high-quality services; and (iii) Defendant’s wrongful conduct, and the damages resulting to 

the City, are continuing.  Accordingly, the City is entitled to preliminary and permanent injunctive 

relief under 15 U.S.C. § 1116(a). 

47. Under 15 U.S.C. § 1117(a), the City is entitled to an order: (i) awarding to City any and 

all profits of Defendant derived from its infringing actions to be increased in accordance with the 

applicable provisions of law; and (ii) awarding all damages sustained by the City that were caused by 

Defendant’s unlawful conduct. 

48. Defendant’s acts make this an exceptional case under 15 U.S.C. § 1117(a); accordingly,  

the City is entitled to an award of attorneys’ fees and costs. 

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 

Federal Unfair Competition/False Designation of Origin – 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a) 

49. The City incorporates by reference the factual allegations set forth above.  

50. The SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark is strong and distinctive 

and designates the City as the source of all goods and services advertised, marketed, sold, or used in 

connection with that mark. 
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51. The City is the senior user of the SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

Mark, as it began use of that mark in interstate commerce decades before any intended use by 

Defendant of the confusingly similar Infringing Mark. 

52. Defendant was aware of the SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark 

because Defendant was on constructive notice based on the City’s ‘396 federal registration, and is on 

actual notice resulting from the City’s numerous direct communications with Defendant about this 

matter (See Exhibits B-E).  Yet, Defendant has continued to adopt and intends to use the Infringing 

Mark.  Thus, Defendant’s unauthorized intended use of the confusingly similar Infringing Mark is 

knowing, intentional, and willful. 

53. Through its attempted/intended use of the confusingly similar Infringing Mark, 

Defendant intends to, and will very likely, confuse, misrepresent, create the false impression, and 

mislead consumers into believing that Defendant’s airport is located in San Francisco or that the City 

somehow authorized, originated, sponsored, approved, licensed, or participated in Defendant’s 

intended use of the Infringing Mark. 

54. In fact, there is no business connection, association, or licensing relationship between 

SFO and Defendant, nor has the City ever authorized, licensed, or given permission to Defendant to 

use the Infringing Mark in any manner. 

55. Defendant’s intended use of the Infringing Mark will likely cause confusion as to the 

origin and authenticity of Defendant’s airport services, and related goods and services, and will very 

likely cause others to believe that there is a relationship between Defendant and the City when there is, 

in fact, not.  Defendant’s intended use of the Infringing Mark will very likely cause consumer 

confusion when travelers arriving at the unintended airport will miss flights, be unable to make travel 

connections, and incur delays and costs to get to their intended destination after arriving at a different 

location than planned, frustrating those travelers to the detriment of both airports and the consuming 

public.  

56. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant’s wrongful conduct, the City has been 

and will be further harmed.  
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57. Defendant’s actions constitute false designation of origin and unfair competition under 

federal law. 

58. Defendant’s activities have caused, and will continue to cause, irreparable harm to the 

City, for which it has no adequate remedy at law, in that: (i) the SAN FRANCISCO 

INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark comprises a unique and valuable property right that has no 

readily determinable market value; (ii) Defendant’s infringement constitutes interference with the 

City’s goodwill and customer relationships and will substantially harm the City’s reputation as a 

source of high-quality goods and services; and (iii) Defendant’s wrongful conduct, and the damages 

resulting to the City, are continuing.  Accordingly, the City is entitled to preliminary and permanent 

injunctive relief under 15 U.S.C. § 1116(a). 

59. Under 15 U.S.C. § 1117(a), the City is entitled to an order: (i) awarding to City any and 

all profits of Defendant derived from its infringing actions to be increased in accordance with the 

applicable provisions of law; and (ii) awarding all damages sustained by the City that were caused by 

Defendant’s unlawful conduct.  

60. Defendant’s acts make this an exceptional case under 15 U.S.C. § 1117(a); accordingly, 

the City is entitled to an award of attorneys’ fees and costs. 

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION 

Common Law Trademark Infringement 

61. The City incorporates by reference the factual allegations set forth above. 

62. The City has valid and protectable common law rights in the SAN FRANCISCO 

INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark. 

63. The City is the senior user of the SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

Mark. 

64. Defendant’s conduct constitutes infringement of the City’s common law rights in the 

SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark. 

65. Defendant’s intended unauthorized use of the confusingly similar Infringing Mark on 

its goods and services is very likely to cause confusion as to the origin of Defendant’s goods and 
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services and is very likely to cause others to believe that there is a relationship between Defendant and 

SFO when there is not. 

66. Defendant’s wrongful acts will permit them to receive substantial profits based upon 

the strength of the City’s reputation and the substantial goodwill it has built up in the 

SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark. 

67. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant’s wrongful conduct, the City has been 

and will continue to be damaged. 

68. Unless this court issues a preliminary and permanent injunction preventing any 

continuing or future use of the Infringing Mark by Defendant, such continuing or future use is very 

likely to continue to cause confusion and thereby irreparably damage the City.  The City has no 

adequate remedy at law.  Accordingly, the City is entitled to preliminary and permanent injunctive 

relief. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

1. An injunction ordering Defendant, and its officers, directors, members, agents, 

employees, and attorneys, and all other persons acting in concert or participating with them, including, 

but not limited to, airlines, rental car companies, and travel booking companies (collectively, the 

“Enjoined Parties”), who receive actual notice of the injunction order by personal or other service, to:  

a. cease all use and never use the Infringing Mark, the SAN FRANCISCO 

INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark, or any other mark likely to cause confusion with 

the SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark, including any 

misspelling or variation of those marks, in, on, or with any products or services, or in 

connection with the, advertising, marketing, or other promotion, distribution, offering 

for sale, or sale, of any products or services;   

b. never use any false designation of origin, false representation, or any false or 

misleading description of fact, that can, or is likely to, lead the consuming public or 

individual members thereof, to believe that any products or services produced, offered, 

promoted, marketed, advertised, provided, sold or otherwise distributed by the Enjoined 



  

Complaint for Trademark Infringement et al. 
Case No.    

16

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Parties is in any manner associated or connected with the City, or are licensed, 

approved, or authorized in any way by the City; 

c. never represent, suggest in any fashion to any third party, or perform any act that may 

give rise to the belief, that the Enjoined Parties, or any of its products or services, are 

related to, or authorized or sponsored by, the City; 

d. never register any domain name that contains the SAN FRANCISCO 

INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark or any misspelling or variation of that Mark, or 

any domain name confusingly similar to the SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL 

AIRPORT Mark;   

e. transfer to the City all domain names in the Enjoined Parties’ possession, custody, or 

control that are confusingly similar to or contain any of the SAN FRANCISCO 

INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark, or were used in connection with the Infringing 

Mark;  

f. never unfairly compete with the City in any manner whatsoever, or engage in any 

unfair, fraudulent, or deceptive business practices that relate in any way to the 

production, distribution, marketing, and/or sale of products and services bearing the 

SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark or any other mark likely to 

cause confusion with the SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark, 

including any misspelling or variation of that Mark; and 

g. never apply for or seek to register the SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL 

AIRPORT Mark, or any other mark likely to cause confusion with the SAN 

FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Mark, including any misspelling or 

variation of that Mark.  

2. An order, under 15 U.S.C. § 1118, requiring the Enjoined Parties to deliver and destroy 

within 30 days all prints, advertising, packaging, goods, and other materials bearing the Infringing 

Mark. 

3. An order under 15 U.S.C. § 1116(a), directing the Enjoined Parties to file with the court 

and serve upon the City’s counsel, within 30 days after service of the order of injunction, a report in 
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writing under oath setting forth in detail the manner and form in which the Enjoined Parties have 

complied with the injunction. 

4. To give practical effect to the Court’s injunction, an order that the Registry or Registrar 

for any of the foregoing domain names shall, within 14 days of receipt of the Order, transfer or 

otherwise assign those subject domain names to the City if the Enjoined Parties have not already done 

so. 

5. An order finding that, by the acts complained of above, Defendant has infringed the 

City’s federally trademark ‘396 registration in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1114. 

6. An order finding that, by the acts complained of above, Defendant has created a false 

designation of origin and false representation of association in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a). 

7. An order finding that, by the acts complained of above, Defendant has engaged in 

common law trademark infringement. 

8. An order under 15 U.S.C. § 1117(a), awarding the City: (i) any and all profits of 

Defendant derived from its infringing actions to be increased in accordance with the applicable 

provisions of law; and (ii) all damages sustained by the City that were caused by Defendant’s unlawful 

conduct. 

9. An order under 15 U.S.C. § 1117(a), finding that this is an exceptional case and 

awarding the City its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs. 

10. An order under 15 U.S.C. § 1117(a), awarding the City all of its costs, disbursements, 

and other expenses incurred due to Defendant’s unlawful conduct. 

11. An order awarding the City such other relief as the Court deems appropriate. 

 

Dated:  April 18, 2024    DERGOSITS & NOAH LLP 

 
      By:  /s/Michael E. Dergosits 
       Michael E. Dergosits 
       Igor Shoiket 
       Attorneys for Plaintiff 
       CITY AND COUNTY OF 

SAN FRANCISCO 
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JURY DEMAND 

 Under Rule 38(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and Civil Local Rule 3-6, Plaintiff 

hereby demands a trial by jury for all issues so triable. 

 

Dated:  April 18, 2024    DERGOSITS & NOAH LLP 

 
            By:   /s/Michael E. Dergosits 
       Michael E. Dergosits 
       Igor Shoiket 
       Attorneys for Plaintiff 

CITY AND COUNTY OF 
       SAN FRANCISCO  
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SAN FRANCISCO
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

Reg. No. 4,189,396 CITYAND COUNTY 0 SN FRANCISCO CALE ORNIA MUNICIL CORRORNTION)
Registered Aug. 14, 2012 i imavcisco, casi
Int. CL: 39 JOR: AIRPORT SERVICES, IN CLASS 193. LS. 10AND 10)
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‘REQUIREMENTS TO MAINTAINYOUR FEDERAL
TRADEMARK REGISTRATION

WARNING: YOUR REGISTRATION WILL BE CANCELLEDIF YOU DO NOT FILE THE
DOCUMENTS BELOWDURING THE SPECIFIED TIME PERIODS.

Requirements in he Firs Ten Vears®
What and When o File:

FirstFiling Deadline: You must fl DeclarationofUse (or Excusable Nonuse) between he
Shand Gh years afer he registraion date. See 15 U.S.C. $1088, 141K. the declarations
accepted the registrationillone in fore or the remainder fhe enya period cakulted
{fom he egistation dtc, nlss called by an order ofthe Commissions for Trademarks or
federal cour

Second FlingDeadline: ou must le aDeclanofUse (or Excusable Nose) and an
Application for Renal between the 9nd 10h years aftr he registtion dite.

See ISUS.C. $105.

Requirements in Successive Ten-Year Periods
What and When o File:

ous ile DecaratonofUse (or xcusabl Nonuse)and anApplication for Renewal between
every Oth and 10-yearperiod, calculated from he registration date.

Grace Period Filings"

“The above docu will eaccepted as timely i ldwithin ix months afer he deadlines ised above
withthe payment fan additonal se.

“Th United Sates Patent and Trademark Office (USPTO) will NOT send you an fore notice or
reminderofthese lng requirements.

“ATTENTION MADRID PROTOCOL REGISTRANTS: The older ofan nematonlresistation wih
an extension ofprotection 0th rit Sts ud the Madrid Procol must nel fe he Declarations
oF Use (or Excusable Nonuse) referenced abovedirectly ith the USPTO, The time periods for filing re
basedon the U.S. egsraton dat (vo he intratioa rgistotiondt). Thedeadlines and grace periods
for the Declarationso Use (or Excusable Nomse) are identical 10 those for monaly issued registrations.

Sue 15U.S.C. 108%, 1141. However, ownersofmemations rgistationsdonti enewalapiicaions.
at the USPTO. stead, ths older must fle 3 renwal of the undering inteaioral regisiratona the
InternationalBuca fhe World nllcun Property Organization, under Aric of te Madrid Proocol,
store he expiration of cach ten-year tem of protection, calculated fom the dt of the iteration
rsistaion. Se 1SUS.C_ $1141] For mare infomationadencval fons ore temationalegisraton,
seep wip in adrden

NOTE: Fees and requirments for maintaining registrations are subject (0 change. Pleas check the
USPTO website for further information. Withthe exception of renewalapplicationsforreistered
extensions of protection, you can fle the registration mancnance documents referenced above online
atap www spo go.

Page: 2/RN #4189396
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PR ——
April 1,2024

Barbara Leslie TRANSMITTED VIA EMAIL
President, Oakland Boardof Port Commissioners bleslie@portoakland.com
30 Water Street

Oakland, CA 94607

SUBJECT: Proposed Renaming of Metropolitan Oakland International Airport

Dear President Leslie:

San Francisco Intemational Airport (SFO) formally objects to the proposed renaming of Metropolitan
Oakland International Airport (OAK) to “San Francisco Bay Oakland International Airport” (File ID:
094-24), scheduled for consideration at the April 11, 2024 meetingofthe Oakland Board of Port
‘Commissioners.

As you know, SFO is among the largest airports in the United States, having served over 50 million
passengers in 2023, andhas operated under the name “San Francisco Airport” or “San Francisco
International Airport” since 1927 —making it immediately recognizable to customers. We have built
on this brand success for decades and are opposed to OAK using any formofthe historic and
‘geographically significant name “San Francisco” in its name.

SFO is owned and operated by the City and CountyofSan Francisco, and San Francisco owns U.S.
federal registrations for the marks SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT (Reg. No.
4,189,396) and the code SFO together with the Airport's logo or design (Reg. No. 3,329, 780). Given
this legal brand standing and the associated name recognition in air transportation, we anticipate the
proposed change considered by the Port ofOakland Commission for OAK will cause confusion for the
‘public, either through a misunderstandingofits physical location or relationship to SFO.

SFO formally requests that you not proceed with any name change for OAK that would use the name
"San Francisco”.

Very, truly yours,

2 LS
©fearC Shtero

peft Director

ce: Mayor London N. Breed, City and County of San Francisco
Mayor Sheng Thao, CityofOakland

San Francisco Airport Commissioners
‘Oakland Boardof Port Commissioners

Danny Wan, Executive Director, Port of Oakland
Craig Simon, Interim Aviation Director, PortofOakland

Oe oo
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[Opposing Proposed Renaming of the Metropolitan Oakland International Airport] 

 
 

Resolution opposing the proposed renaming of the Metropolitan Oakland International 

Airport to “San Francisco Bay Oakland International Airport” and urging the Port of 

Oakland Commission to reject any name change that would use the name “San 

Francisco.” 

 

WHEREAS, The Port of Oakland Commission will be considering an ordinance to 

approve the renaming of “Metropolitan Oakland International Airport” (OAK) to “San Francisco 

Bay Oakland International Airport” on April 11, 2024, which they unexpectedly announced the 

Friday before spring break when many students would be flying, and also without any 

advance notice to San Francisco officials who will be on legislative recess next week; and 

WHEREAS, The San Francisco International Airport (SFO) is owned by the City and 

County of San Francisco, and is among the largest airports in the United States, having 

served over 50 million passengers in 2023; and 

WHEREAS, SFO has operated since 1927, and has used the name “San Francisco 

Airport” or “San Francisco International Airport” for most of its history, making it immediately 

recognizable to customers; and 

WHEREAS, San Francisco owns U.S. federal registrations for the marks SAN 

FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT (Reg. No. 4,189,396) and the code SFO together 

with the Airport’s logo or design (Reg. No. 3,329,780); and   

WHEREAS, Given this long history of SFO ownership, and the strong associated name 

and brand recognition in air transportation, the proposal to rename OAK to “San Francisco 

Bay Oakland International Airport” will cause significant confusion for the travelling public and 
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others, as well as potential economic impacts for businesses that have products delivered by 

plane, either through a misunderstanding of its physical location or relationship to SFO; and  

WHEREAS, As a major international gateway, this concern is heightened when 

considering the large number of international travelers who do not speak or read English, 

potentially compounding the confusion; now, therefore, be it 

RESOLVED, That the Board of Supervisors of the City and County of San Francisco is 

opposed to the renaming of OAK to “San Francisco Bay Oakland International Airport;” and, 

be it 

FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Board of Supervisors urgently requests that the Port 

of Oakland Commission reject any name change for OAK that would use the historically and 

geographically significant name “San Francisco” in any way; and, be it  

FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Board of Supervisors is committed to collaborating 

across the Bay to uplift the collective and mutual best interests of all its Bay Area neighboring 

cities, including Oakland and San Jose; and, be it  

FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors is directed to 

transmit copies of this resolution to the Port of Oakland’s Board of Commissioners, as an 

expression of San Francisco’s strong opposition to the proposed renaming. 
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April 8,2024

Barbara Leslie
President, Oakland Boardof Port Commissioners
30 Water Street
Oakland, CA 94607

RE: Proposed Renaming of Metropolitan Oakland International Airport ~ OPPOSE

Dear President Leslie,

Onbehalfof the City and County of San Francisco,I write to oppose the proposed renaming of
Metropolitan Oakland International Airport (OAK) to “San Francisco Bay Oakland International
Airport,” scheduled for consideration at the April 11, 2024 meeting of the Oakland Boardof Port
Commissioners.

“The San Francisco International Airport (SFO) has operated since 1927 and its name is
immediately recognizable to visitors from all over the world. Last year, 50 million passengers
walked through its doors and experienced the results of the significant investments we have
made to make SFO the airport it s today. The creationof the International Terminal over twenty
years ago, along with major upgrades to almost all SFO terminals, attract the level of
international and domestic flights that draw Airlines that want to operate and grow at SFO.

Given SFO’s stellar brand standing and associated name recognition in a transportation, this
‘misguided proposal will cause confusion for the public, either through a misunderstanding of
physical location or the airport’s relationship to SFO. As a major international gateway, this
concern would be compounded when considering an audienceof travelers for whom English is
not their first language.

‘We encourage Oakland Airport to followa similar model to SFO and grow its airport services
rather than adding “San Francisco” to its name. Oakland is a great city witha rich history. Many
ofmy friends live there, manyofour city workers commute from there, and I always enjoy
visiting our neighbor across the bay. It is rich in culture and wonderful people and has its own
unique identity. It does not need the name San Francisco as part of its airport to stand out.

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, ROOM 200
‘San FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681

TELEPHONE. (415) 554-6141



1 formally oppose Oakland International Airport changing its name in any way that would
incorporate “San Francisco” into its airport name.

Sincerely,

London N. Breed
Mayor

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, ROOM 200
‘SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681

TELEPHONE. (415) 554-6141
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 
 

 

DAVID CHIU 
City Attorney 

Direct Dial: (415) 554-4748 
Email: luis.zamora@sfcityatty.org 

   
 

   
CITY HALL ∙ 1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, ROOM 234 ∙ SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4682 

RECEPTION:  (415) 554-4700 ∙ FACSIMILE:  (415) 554-4757 
  

April 8, 2024 
 
Barbara Leslie, President, Oakland Board of Port Commissioners 
Members of the Oakland Board of Port Commissioners 
Danny Wan, Executive Director 
Mary C. Richardson, Port Attorney 
Port of Oakland 
530 Water Street 
Oakland, CA 94607 
 
Craig Simon 
Interim Director of Aviation 
Metropolitan Oakland International Airport 
One Airport Drive  
Oakland, CA 94621 
 
 Re: Request to Reconsider the Proposed Renaming of Metropolitan Oakland 

International Airport to Avoid Legal Action 
 
Dear President Leslie, Members of the Board of Port Commissioners, Executive Director Wan, 
Interim Aviation Director Simon, and Port Attorney Richardson: 
 
 My Office represents the City and County of San Francisco (the “City”), including the 
Office of the Mayor, the Board of Supervisors, and the Airport Commission, which operates San 
Francisco International Airport (“SFO”). 
 
 I write to join the City’s strong objections to the proposed renaming of Metropolitan 
Oakland International Airport to “San Francisco Bay Oakland International Airport,” scheduled 
for consideration at the April 11, 2024 meeting of the Oakland Board of Port Commissioners.  
(See Mayor London Breed’s April 8, 2024 letter; Airport Director Ivar C. Satero’s April 1, 2024 
letter; and the San Francisco Board of Supervisors’ resolution, adopted April 2, 2024. Copies of 
these documents are attached.) 
 
 I further request that the Oakland Board of Port Commissioners promptly cancel its plans 
to rename its airport as currently proposed and consider a different name that does not include 
the words “San Francisco.” Should you continue in these efforts, I intend to pursue legal action 
to prevent your use of the proposed new name. 
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Letter to Barbara Leslie, President, Oakland Board of Port Commissioners 
Members of the Oakland Board of Port Commissioners 
Danny Wan, Executive Director 
Mary C. Richardson, Port Attorney 
Port of Oakland 
530 Water Street 
Oakland, CA 94607 
 
Craig Simon 
Interim Director of Aviation 
Metropolitan Oakland International Airport 
One Airport Drive  
Oakland, CA 94621 
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April 8, 2024 
 

  

 As you know, SFO is one of the busiest airports in the world, serving more than 50 
million domestic and international passengers in 2023. SFO began operations almost a century 
ago in 1927, and has used the name “San Francisco Airport” or “San Francisco International 
Airport” throughout most of its history. The names “San Francisco Airport” and “San Francisco 
International Airport” are famous and highly recognizable among consumers in connection with 
the airport services that only SFO provides. 
 
 The City owns U.S. federal trademark registrations for the marks “San Francisco 
International Airport” (Reg. No. 4,189,396) and the International Air Transport Association 
assigned airport code SFO together with SFO's Design Registration (Reg. No. 3,329,780). The 
City has held these registrations for such a long time that they have become incontestable under 
federal law. That means they constitute conclusive evidence of the validity of the marks as well 
as the City’s exclusive rights to use the marks. Indeed, there is and only ever has been one airport 
in the United States that uses “San Francisco” in its name. 
 
 Given SFO’s long history with the name “San Francisco International Airport” (and 
previously “San Francisco Airport”), its high recognition in the marketplace, and its trademark 
status, the proposed new name will be very highly likely to cause confusion or mistake among 
consumers and the public generally. That very high risk of confusion or mistake is because 
consumers will either misunderstand Oakland International Airport’s physical location (i.e., that 
it’s in San Francisco rather than Oakland) or mistakenly believe that there is a formal 
relationship or connection between the two airports that does not exist.  
 
 More specifically, the proposed new name “San Francisco Bay Oakland International 
Airport” incorporates the entirety of the City’s registered mark, with the first two words of the 
proposed name (i.e., “San Francisco”) being identical and most prominent. The location of “San 
Francisco” at the beginning of the name further enhances the very high likelihood of consumer 
and public confusion. Oakland International Airport’s published statements suggest that it chose 
to include the term “San Francisco” in its new name to intentionally divert travelers who may be 
unfamiliar with the relevant geography and lead them to believe that the Oakland International 
Airport is located in San Francisco or has a business relationship with SFO, which it does not. 
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While the proposed new name is very likely to cause confusion and mistakes broadly, the 
problem will be particularly acute for an audience of international travelers who may not speak 
or read English. Those international travelers comprise an essential part of SFO’s consumer base. 
 
 For all these reasons, based on the undisputed similarity and the resulting very high 
likelihood of confusion between the City’s registered trademark “San Francisco International 
Airport” and the proposed “San Francisco Bay Oakland International Airport,” if you proceed 
with the proposed renaming, the City has strong legal claims, including, among others, federal 
trademark infringement and federal trademark dilution claims, and related common law and state 
claims for trademark infringement, that we intend to bring in court against the Port of Oakland, 
as a department of the City of Oakland.  
 
 Accordingly, on behalf of the City, including SFO, I request that the Port of Oakland 
promptly cancel its announced plans to change the name of Metropolitan Oakland International 
Airport to “San Francisco Bay Oakland International Airport,” and consider alternatives to 
achieve its stated goals of increasing consumer patronage and value that avoid infringing on the 
City’s registered trademark. I invite the Port of Oakland staff to consult with SFO staff, who are 
prepared to work collaboratively on alternative names that would not create confusion for 
consumers and the public. If the Port of Oakland instead elects to proceed with the proposed 
name change, then unfortunately the City will have no choice other than to pursue necessary 
legal action.  
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Very truly yours, 
 

 
 
DAVID CHIU 
City Attorney 
 

 
encl: April 1, 2024 Letter from SFO Airport Director Ivar C. Satero to President Leslie 
 April 2, 2024 San Francisco Board of Supervisors Resolution 
 April 8, 2024 Letter from Mayor Breed to President Leslie 
 
 
cc: Mayor London Breed 
 SFO Airport Director Ivar C. Satero  
 San Francisco Airport Commission 
 San Francisco Board of Supervisors 
 
 

 
 



an

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR Gl 4 LONDON N. BREED
SAN FRANCISCO ® y MAYOR

GE

April 8,2024

Barbara Leslie
President, Oakland Boardof Port Commissioners
30 Water Street
Oakland, CA 94607

RE: Proposed Renaming of Metropolitan Oakland International Airport ~ OPPOSE

Dear President Leslie,

Onbehalfof the City and County of San Francisco,I write to oppose the proposed renaming of
Metropolitan Oakland International Airport (OAK) to “San Francisco Bay Oakland International
Airport,” scheduled for consideration at the April 11, 2024 meeting of the Oakland Boardof Port
Commissioners.

“The San Francisco International Airport (SFO) has operated since 1927 and its name is
immediately recognizable to visitors from all over the world. Last year, 50 million passengers
walked through its doors and experienced the results of the significant investments we have
made to make SFO the airport it s today. The creationof the International Terminal over twenty
years ago, along with major upgrades to almost all SFO terminals, attract the level of
international and domestic flights that draw Airlines that want to operate and grow at SFO.

Given SFO’s stellar brand standing and associated name recognition in a transportation, this
‘misguided proposal will cause confusion for the public, either through a misunderstanding of
physical location or the airport’s relationship to SFO. As a major international gateway, this
concern would be compounded when considering an audienceof travelers for whom English is
not their first language.

‘We encourage Oakland Airport to followa similar model to SFO and grow its airport services
rather than adding “San Francisco” to its name. Oakland is a great city witha rich history. Many
ofmy friends live there, manyofour city workers commute from there, and I always enjoy
visiting our neighbor across the bay. It is rich in culture and wonderful people and has its own
unique identity. It does not need the name San Francisco as part of its airport to stand out.

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, ROOM 200
‘San FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681

TELEPHONE. (415) 554-6141



1 formally oppose Oakland International Airport changing its name in any way that would
incorporate “San Francisco” into its airport name.

Sincerely,

London N. Breed
Mayor

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, ROOM 200
‘SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681

TELEPHONE. (415) 554-6141



PR ——
April 1,2024

Barbara Leslie TRANSMITTED VIA EMAIL
President, Oakland Boardof Port Commissioners bleslie@portoakland.com
30 Water Street

Oakland, CA 94607

SUBJECT: Proposed Renaming of Metropolitan Oakland International Airport

Dear President Leslie:

San Francisco Intemational Airport (SFO) formally objects to the proposed renaming of Metropolitan
Oakland International Airport (OAK) to “San Francisco Bay Oakland International Airport” (File ID:
094-24), scheduled for consideration at the April 11, 2024 meetingofthe Oakland Board of Port
‘Commissioners.

As you know, SFO is among the largest airports in the United States, having served over 50 million
passengers in 2023, andhas operated under the name “San Francisco Airport” or “San Francisco
International Airport” since 1927 —making it immediately recognizable to customers. We have built
on this brand success for decades and are opposed to OAK using any formofthe historic and
‘geographically significant name “San Francisco” in its name.

SFO is owned and operated by the City and CountyofSan Francisco, and San Francisco owns U.S.
federal registrations for the marks SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT (Reg. No.
4,189,396) and the code SFO together with the Airport's logo or design (Reg. No. 3,329, 780). Given
this legal brand standing and the associated name recognition in air transportation, we anticipate the
proposed change considered by the Port ofOakland Commission for OAK will cause confusion for the
‘public, either through a misunderstandingofits physical location or relationship to SFO.

SFO formally requests that you not proceed with any name change for OAK that would use the name
"San Francisco”.

Very, truly yours,

2 LS
©fearC Shtero

peft Director

ce: Mayor London N. Breed, City and County of San Francisco
Mayor Sheng Thao, CityofOakland

San Francisco Airport Commissioners
‘Oakland Boardof Port Commissioners

Danny Wan, Executive Director, Port of Oakland
Craig Simon, Interim Aviation Director, PortofOakland
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[Opposing Proposed Renaming of the Metropolitan Oakland International Airport] 

 
 

Resolution opposing the proposed renaming of the Metropolitan Oakland International 

Airport to “San Francisco Bay Oakland International Airport” and urging the Port of 

Oakland Commission to reject any name change that would use the name “San 

Francisco.” 

 

WHEREAS, The Port of Oakland Commission will be considering an ordinance to 

approve the renaming of “Metropolitan Oakland International Airport” (OAK) to “San Francisco 

Bay Oakland International Airport” on April 11, 2024, which they unexpectedly announced the 

Friday before spring break when many students would be flying, and also without any 

advance notice to San Francisco officials who will be on legislative recess next week; and 

WHEREAS, The San Francisco International Airport (SFO) is owned by the City and 

County of San Francisco, and is among the largest airports in the United States, having 

served over 50 million passengers in 2023; and 

WHEREAS, SFO has operated since 1927, and has used the name “San Francisco 

Airport” or “San Francisco International Airport” for most of its history, making it immediately 

recognizable to customers; and 

WHEREAS, San Francisco owns U.S. federal registrations for the marks SAN 

FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT (Reg. No. 4,189,396) and the code SFO together 

with the Airport’s logo or design (Reg. No. 3,329,780); and   

WHEREAS, Given this long history of SFO ownership, and the strong associated name 

and brand recognition in air transportation, the proposal to rename OAK to “San Francisco 

Bay Oakland International Airport” will cause significant confusion for the travelling public and 
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others, as well as potential economic impacts for businesses that have products delivered by 

plane, either through a misunderstanding of its physical location or relationship to SFO; and  

WHEREAS, As a major international gateway, this concern is heightened when 

considering the large number of international travelers who do not speak or read English, 

potentially compounding the confusion; now, therefore, be it 

RESOLVED, That the Board of Supervisors of the City and County of San Francisco is 

opposed to the renaming of OAK to “San Francisco Bay Oakland International Airport;” and, 

be it 

FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Board of Supervisors urgently requests that the Port 

of Oakland Commission reject any name change for OAK that would use the historically and 

geographically significant name “San Francisco” in any way; and, be it  

FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Board of Supervisors is committed to collaborating 

across the Bay to uplift the collective and mutual best interests of all its Bay Area neighboring 

cities, including Oakland and San Jose; and, be it  

FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors is directed to 

transmit copies of this resolution to the Port of Oakland’s Board of Commissioners, as an 

expression of San Francisco’s strong opposition to the proposed renaming. 
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